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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘ Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating eftectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;
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* ff;) %f/‘i%ﬁ":—%’éﬁect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.24 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. =~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

MMU&}/{P‘; L]

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBMC2141
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2023
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited (’the Company')

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our

knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) There is no immovable property, (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held in the name of
the Company and accordingly, the requirements to report on clause 3(i)(c) is not
applicable to company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(ii) a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on
the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

oz
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(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

c)

d)

a)

b)

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
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b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

€) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

H The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

) a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit
and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

o

(xi)

b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor, secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT —
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with

the Central Government.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

o

(xii)

b) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

¢) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv) a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) a) The provisions of section 45-JA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 2.36 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required

to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter
has been disclosed in note 2.35 to the financial statements.

b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 2.35 to the financial
statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Nﬁm} G

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBMC2141
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KIMS HOSPITAL ENTERPRISES PRIVATE
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Enterprises Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

HARTERED

Wd Med- (Q ( /J ;| ACCOUNTANTS

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBMC2111
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2023




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Balance sheet s at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 21(a)
Capital work-in-progress 21(c)
Inlangible assets 21 (b)
Right-of-use assels 225
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 2.3(a)
Deferred tax assets 233
Non-urrent tax assets (net) 28
Other non-cuirent assets 24
Total non-current assets
Current assels
Inventories 2.5
Financial assets
(i) Investments 22
(ii) Trade receivables 26
(iit) Cash and cash equivalents 2 %(a)
(iv) Other financial assets 2.3(b)
Other current assets 29
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2.10(a)
Other equity 2.10(b)
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.11 (a)
(i1) Lease liabilities 225
Provisions 213
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.11(b)
(ii) Lease liabilities 225
(iii} Trade payables 214
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 212
Provisions 2.15
Other current liabilities 216
Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Significant accounting policies 13

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2023

720.95 59210
17720 5701
788 5.75
942 89 1,067.23
26034 287.18
13.06 133
3.10 1.05
3259 85.57
2,158.01 2,097.22
41.49 4211
267 14 -
13248 91.92
18.77 2348
3800 3143
909 825
506.97 197.19
2,664.98 2,294.41
24545 24545
1,316 93 847.38
1,562.38 1,092.83
068 153
807.82 886.59
040 424
808.90 892.36
0385 078
78.77 67.69
2247 888
142,70 187,69
11.56 1043
981 10.49
27.54 2154
1.72
293.70 309.22
2,664.98 2,294.41

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report attached of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Acepuntants
IEALFirm Regstration no. 101049W/ E300004

\
O\
M&d;i KaliF \}%
Parter {%‘

Membership no.: 102328 @ [CHARTERE

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

1

Dr. V Sudheer
Director
DIN: 09388621

B Abhinay
Director
INN:01681273
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Gaurav Dutt Trivedi P. Venu \//
oer

Clidef firatictal o

Company Secretary
Membership no.FF11516

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments
Decrease/(increase) in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical
instruments

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expense

- Current tax

- Deferred tax credit

- Tax pertaining to earlier years
Total tax expense

Profit for the year (A)

Other comprehensive income /(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans

- Income tax effect

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (B)

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B)

Earmning per share (face value of share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic and Diluted

Significant accounting policies

For the year ended  For the year ended
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2.17 2,506.35 2,289.73
2.18 2235 18.76
2,528.70 2,308.49
467.53 444.16
2.19 0.62 (17.06)
220 30031 284.60
222 40.63 49.68
221 174.32 142.36
223 915.71 789.63
1,899.12 1,693.37
629.58 615.12
233 171.64 164.32
233 (11.49) (8.38)
233 (0.84) -
159.31 155.94
470.27 459.18
227 (0.96) (0.69)
0.24 0.20
(0.72) (0.49)
469.55 458.69
2.28
19.16 18.71
13

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
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KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No of shares Amount
At April 2021 2,45,44,657 24545
Add: shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 2,45,44,657 24545
Add: shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2023 2,45,44.657 24545
b) Other Equity
Other equity
Particulars Reserve and surplus Capital Totael oufitOther
Securitics premium] Retained earnings centributien a e

Balance as at 1 April 2021 111.41 265.92 11.36 388.69
Profit for the year - 459.18 - 459.18
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year = (0.49) = (0.49)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 11141 724.61 11.36 847.38
Profit for the year - 470.27 - 470.27
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - (0.72) = (0.72)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 111.41 1,194.16 11.36 1.316.93
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Name Ca 1

per Navaeet Rai Kabr:
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

j?&.:\hhina)‘

by

Dr. V Sudheer
Director Director
DIN:01681273 DIN: 09388621
e
Gauray Dutt Trivedi P. Venu V
Company Secretary Chief financic ufﬁsa/
Membership no.F11516 S

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2023




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1. Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit belore tax 629 58 61512
Adjustments for operating activities:
17432 14236

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Provision for expected credit loss for trade receivable (net of bad debts) 986 774
Lease income (1.35) (1.53)
Interest income (7.47) (9.66)
Liabilities no longer required writien back - 277
Fair value gain on mutual funds {3.50) -
Finance cost 40.63 49.68
Operating cash flows belore working capital changes 842.07 800.94
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade receivables (50.42) (15.01)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 062 (17 06)
Decrease / (increase) in other assets 23.68 (450.55)
Increase in liabilities and provisions {30.25) 51.94
Cash generated from operations 785.70 370.26
Income-taxes paid, net of refund (174.57) {187 25)
Net cash flow generated [rom operating activities (A) 611.13 183.01
II. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (206 .87) (157.09)
Investment in Mutual fund (325.00) =
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 6136 >
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 1.27 542.50
Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (1.19) (436.78)
Lease income 135 153
Interest income 3.82 539
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (465.26) {44.45)
1IL. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (0.78) (150.57)
Receipts of loan from relaled party - 128.58
Repayment of loan from related party - (128.58)
Payment of lease obligations (149.65) (82.43)
Finance cost (0.15) (8.21)
Net cash llows used in financing activities (C) (150.58) (241.21)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 4.71) (102.65)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2348 126.13
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18.77 23.48
Note:
a) The standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (In 7)-Statement of cash flows:
. . For the period ended For the year ended
b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: 31pMarch 2023 31 l\zarch 2022
Cash on hand 0383 0.49
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 17 94 2299
Total 18.77 23.48

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date

for S R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

1.1  Company Overview
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited (‘the Company’) is private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated on 15 February 2013 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the

company is located at Building No.1-112/86, Survey No. 55/EE, Kondapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal,
Hyderabad, Telangana, India — 500084.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 16 May 2023.

1.2  Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

These financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, have been prepared in
accordance with requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended,

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule III of the Act.

All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data, unless otherwise
stated.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data and per share data,
unless otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions :

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most 51gn1ﬁcant effect on the
ecognised in the financial statements. : \




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 2.33 — Recognition of deferred tax assets,
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value
of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 2.27 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations,
key actuarial assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity
of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation. -

P Ay

T BT D,

A7 WSS S

N T N
A
B




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 2.35 for further disclosures.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they
need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not
to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
asscts or obscrvable market prices lcss incremental costs for disposing of the assct. The valuc in usc calculation
is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

e) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current classification
: o
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KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating
cycle;

il. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current,
Liabilities

A 11ab111ty is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

1] Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techmques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
e to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and rmmm]pmg t‘he use of




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and the
Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values
is included in Note 2.32 — financial instruments.

1.3  Significant accounting policies
A. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services and
sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company e\pect@ o JJe: G.I][lt[ed in
exchange for those goods ot setvices.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical
professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for components
of variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other rights and
obligations as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers
and deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the point in time for the
outpatient hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect to the
inpatients hospital services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is
recognised over the period to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital services), where the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable
consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount is used
for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is used for those with more
than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates in order to
determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price and recognised as
revenue.

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients who
are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial instruments —
initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company (ransfers (he related goods or services. Coutract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does;hm cqnsxder

el

ed credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of pmf it and loss ~ NEAN
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KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

B. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to the
extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
ot an asset or ltability in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the time ot the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are rQCQggsﬁcd:tcnme
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assetjxh_;.peﬁwéa’éfsg .'3\\
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KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

C. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing costs, if the recognition
criteria are met, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
de-recognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life and it is
depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date
are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are dicclosod undor capital work in progross.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are de-recognised from the financial statements upon sale or
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date
are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.
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De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an
item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as estimated by the
management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance with
the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Medical and surgical equipment 13

Machinery and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8-10

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has estimated
the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
IT to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

e Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
e Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers the
impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated
residual values.

D. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as g_pprt_;;_is’j:i_tex,_@nd
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with ﬁﬁité-ﬁvgﬁ;;i_s
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recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects
of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and
known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future
cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:
Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6

E. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

F. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

1) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset..The right-
of-use asgets-gre also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairm_egfg(if mom-financial
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ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or arate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

G. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by item basis.

H. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
1nd1v1d_ua1 a s the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent gf',/lﬂérﬁggip‘\gt\lier
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assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth vear.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

I. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability ie a poeeible obligation that arices from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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J. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date. then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-pavment will lead to, for example, a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a
defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned and
returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.
The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI).

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined benefit liability
(asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and
losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account on
thie catlict vl aweuduent vt cutlailineut.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructlve obllgatlon to pay this amount as aresult of the past.servieg prowded
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Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave during
the financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences at the end
of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of the financial
year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

K. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial
assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. ;
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Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
B Financial assets at amortised cost
= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

B the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at amortised
cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-current
financial assets. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 2.32.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

It the Company enters into transactions whereby it transtfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be

required to repay.
Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans: _{\I}Ebt;_s’é@grilies.
deposits, traderegaivables and bank balance. R N
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Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

The Company considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised [l'l]].liﬂ‘ljf;ﬂt fair-value and,

in the case o &A and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction ¢osts. T‘I}QC ompany S
: 30 1-=7
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financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and
financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
= Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit _
and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

L. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they
are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

M. Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to cqu:_g{ sharehold ers

for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year\- R <) ; N\
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N. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Board of Directors is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

0. Corporate social responsibility

The Company charges its Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure to the statement of profit and loss.

P. Eveats after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of
the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events
after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Q. New and amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 Apr 2022. The Company has not early adopted any other standard or amendment
that has been issued but is not yet effective:

- Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

- Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments Classification, Recognition and Derecognition

— Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

— Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

R. Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. On
March 31, 2023, the MCA, issued certain amendments to Ind AS. The amendments relate to the following
standards:

- Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

— Ind AS 1, Income Taxes
= TInd AS 12, Presentation of Financial Statements

These amendments are effective from April 01, 2023. The Company believes that the aforementioned
amendments will not materially impact the financial statements of the Company.
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KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.1 (c) Capital Work in Progress

Gross Carrying amount

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Balance as at beginning of the year 57.01 3.19
Additions 120.19 53.82
Balance as at end of the year 177.20 57.01
i) For capital work in progress, ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2023
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a periof of Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years
-Projects in Progress 120.19 53.82 3.19 = 177.20
Total 120.19 53.82 3.19 - 177.20
i) For capital work in progress, agcing Schedule as on 31 March 2022
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a periof of Total
<1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years more than 3 years
-Projects in Progress 53.82 3.19 - - 57.01
Total 53.82 3.19 - - 57.01

There are no capital work in progress projects, whose completion is overdue or has exceed its cost compared to its original plan as at 31 March

2023 and 31 March 2022.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2.2 Current investments
(Quoted investments, fair value through profit or loss)
Investment in mutual funds 267.14 -
Total 267.14 -
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 267.14 -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 267.14 -
Aggregate provisions for impairment in value of investments - -
2.3 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)
(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date)* 1.27 135
Interest accrued 0.03 0.14
Security deposits 259.04 285.69
Total 260.34 287.18
* Bank deposits placed are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing after 12 months of the
reporting date.
(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer note 2.34) 35.36 29.79
Security deposits 2.64 1.64
Total 38.00 3143
2.4 Other non-current assets
-To parties other than related parties
(unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 25.04 77.34
Prepaid expenses 7.55 8.23
Total 32.59 85.57
2.5 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medical consumables, drug and surgical instruments 41.49 42.11
Total 41.49 42,11




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.6

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade receivables (at amortised cost)

(Unsecured)

Considered good - Unsecured 146 35 103 48

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (13.87) (11.56)
132.48 91.92

Trade receivables - credit impaired - unsecured - -

Less: Allowance for credit impairment - -

Total 132.48 91.92

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days

Trade Receivables aging schedule as on 31 March 2023

OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Current but Less than 6 Total
Not dues months 6 months -1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 years
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good 7333 4837 11.57 635 2,12 4.61 14635

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- significant incrense
in credit risk

(1§} Undisputed Trade receivables-credit impaired - = - - a - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered good - - - . - i
(v) Disputed Trade receivables- significant merease m

credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-credit impaired & e = = 3] -

Total 146.35

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss (13.87)

Balance at the end of the year 132.48

Trade Receivables aging schedule as on 31 March 2022

0 ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but Less than 6 Total
Not dues months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good 39.28 4521 799 621 296 183 103.48

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- significant increase -

in credit risk £ E = ] = e

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables—credit impaired - - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered good - - - - - - -

(v) Disputed Trade receivables- significant increase in -

credit risk - = = z = B

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-credit impaired = = = = - - -

Total 103.48

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss (11.56)
91.92

Balance at the end of the year




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2.7 Cash and bank balances
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.83 0.49
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 17.94 2299
Total 18.77 23.48

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eamn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

4 As at Asat
Particulars 1 April 2022 Cash flows Other 31 March 2023
Current and Non- Current lease liabilities 954.28 (149.65) 81.96 886.59
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 2.31 (0.78) - 1.53
Total liabilities from financing activities 956.59 (150.43) 81.96 888.12

. As at As at
Particulars 1 April 2021 Cash flows Other 31 March 2022
Current and Non- Current lease liabilities 430.74 (82.43) 605.97 954.28
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 152.88 (150.57) - 2.31
Total liabilities from financing activities 583.62 (233.00) 605.97 956.59

The ‘Other’ column includes the effect of accrued but not yet paid interest on lease liabilities. Further, this also includes addition in the lease liabilities of
Rs. 541.87 in the previous year.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2.8 Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance tax (net of provision for taxation) 3.10 1.05
3.10 1.05
2.9 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers 1.97 0.85
Prepaid expenses 4.11 6.28
Staff advances 1.48 1.12
Other Receivables 1.53 -

Total 9.09 8.25




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupecs except share data or unless otherwise stated

As at Asat
2.10(a) Equity share capital 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised
Equity shares
25,000,000 (31 March 2022: 25,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 250.00 25000
250.00 250.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
24,544,657 (31 March 2022; 24,544,657) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 245.45 24545
245.45 245.45
i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As aB1 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares Ampunt Number of shares Amount
At the commencement of the vear 2.45.44.657 24545 24544657 245.45
Shares ling at the end of the vear 2.45,44,657 24545 2.A544,657 24545

ii)  Righis, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share held. In the event of liquidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders

iii)  Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares

Name of sharcholder As a81 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares % of Holding  Number of shares % of Holding
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 2,22,72,857 9074 2,12,72,857 86.67
S Padma Priva 15.83.454 645 15,83,454 645
iv)  Shares hield by holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or asociate of halding company
Name of shareholder As a81 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 22212857 22273 23T RST 21273

(v}  The Company has not issued bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period
(vi)  The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period.

(vii) Details of shares held by Promaters *
As at 31 March 2023

No of shares at . o i

S.No. Particulars Promoter name beginning of Change durings shiojofisharesiat % of total shares * change dariig

shiu venr: the year end of the year the year
1 Equily shares o R I0eachifullyjpaid Krishna Institute of Medieq] 2,12,72,857 10,00,000 2,22.72,857 90.74% L07%
Sciences Limited

2 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid S Padmapriya 15,83,454 = 15,83,454 6.45% -
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid S Sunand 4,16,546 - 4,16,546 1.70% -

Total 232, 72857 10,00,000 2,42,72.857 98.89% 4.07%

As at 31 March 2022

No of shares at

. .
S.No. Particulars Promoter name beginning of % change during

Change during ~ No of shares at % of total shares

the year end of the year the year
the vear
I Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Kr!shna In;ll(ule of Medical 2,11,85,907 86,950 2,12,72,857 86.67% 0.35%
Sciences Limited
4 Equity shares of Rs_ 10 each fully paid S Padmapriya 15,83,454 = 15,83,454 6.45% 0,005
Equity shares of Rs_ 10 each fully paid S Sunand 4,16,546 = 4,16,546 1.70% 0,004
Total 2,31,85,907 86,950 23272857 94.82% 0.35%

* Promoters are as per the annual return liled by the Company




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounis are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.10(b) Other equity

A} Capital contribution

Opening balance

Add: Increase/(decrease) during the year
Closing balance (A)

B) Retained earning

Opening balance

Add: Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax}
Closing balance (B)

C) Securities premium

Opening balance

Add: Increase/(decrease) during the year
Closing balance (C)

- Total other equity (A+B+C)

Nature and purpose of reserves:
(i) Capital contribution

Financial are d as a fi

determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially ised less lati ion, where appropriate
‘Where guarantee in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiary is provided for no

the books of the Comparry.

(it) Retained earmings

Retained eamnings are the profils/losses (net of appropriations) of the company earned till date, including items of other comprehensive income.
(iii) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

11.36 1136

11.36 11.36
724.61 265.92
470.27 459.18

(0.72) (0.49)
1,194.16 724.61
11141 11141
111.41 111.41

131693 - 84738

S

ial liability at the time of issue of guarantee. The liability is measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount

p ion by the shareholder, fair values of such guarantees are accounted as capital contribution in
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated
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(@)

(b)

Notes:

Borrowings (at amortised cost)

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current borrowings
Secured
Term loans from banks
- HDFC bank (refer note i) 0.68 1.53
Total non-current borrowings 0.68 1.53
Current borrowings
Secured
Term loans from banks
- HDFC bank (refer note i) 0.85 0.78
Total current borrowings 0.85 0.78

Term loan from HDFC Bank is secured by first exclusive hypothecation charge on the vehicle acquired from the said loan. The loan carries
interest rate of 8.01% per annum. These loans are repayable in 84 equated monthly instalments starting from January 2018 to December 2024.

LT




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.12 Other [linancial liabilities (at amortised cost)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Current
Capital creditors 068 0.18
Employee related payable 1087 1024
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.01 001
Total 11.56 10.43
Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2 27) 040 424
Total 0.40 4.24
Trade pavables (at amortised cost)
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 2.30) 2247 888
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14270 187.69
Total 165.17 196.57
The above includes payable to related partics. (refer note 2 26)
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2023

Particulars Current but not Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

i) Total tstandi di f mi
(1) c.Ja outstanding  dues of micro 1865 382 i i ~ 22.47
enterprises and small enterprises

ii) Total outstanding di di
(if) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 124.82 1199 1.04 120 365 14270
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises R _ _ 3 = -
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises R R R N _ R
Total 165.17
Trade Pavable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2022
Particulars Current but not Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

due <1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

i} Total standing s of
(1) Total outstandimg dues of micro e La2 ) ’ i 3.88
enterprises and small enterprises

(i) Tots tanding d 3
(1) Total custanding dues of oclilors Gy 6551 106.57 11.45 127 290 187.69
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ifi) Disputed dues of micre enterprises and
smull enterprises _ = > < - .
(iv) Disputed dues of ereditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 196.57

2.15 Short term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Lompensated absences nel nas
Total 9.81 10.49
2.16 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues 12.47 928
Contract liabilities (refer note 2.34) 1507 1226
Total 27.54 21.54




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2.17 Revenue from operations
A Revenue from contract with customers
Income from medical and healthcare services (refer 2.34)
Income from hospital services 1,819.62 1,715.27
Income from sale of pharmacy 679.20 573.50
Total 2,498.82 2,288.77
B Other operating income
Income from academic courses 1.76 -
Income from sale of food and beverages 5.48 077
Other hospital income 029 0.19
Total 7.53 0.96
Total income from operations (A+B) 2.506.35 2,289.73
2.18 Other income
Interest income on:
- Fixed deposits 3.71 3.86
- Security deposit 3.76 5.80
Fair value gain on mutual funds 3.50 -
Lease income 1.35 1.53
Liabilities no longer required written back - 2.77
Miscellaneous income 10.03 4.80
Total 22.35 18.76
oW
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.20

221

2.22

2.23

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments
Opening stock 42.11 25.05
Less: Closing stock 4149 42.11
Total 0.62 (17.06)
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 281.12 265.27
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2.27) 13.76 14.06
Staff welfare expenses 543 5.27
Total 300.31 284.60
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property,plant and equiment (refer note no 2. 1(a)) 130.08 98.68
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note no 2.1(b)) 1.72 133
Amortisation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 2.25) 42.52 4235
Total 174.32 142,36
Finance costs
Interest expense on
- term loans 0.15 3.69
Loan from related parties (refer note 2.26) - 3.41
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 2.25) 40.48 42.58
Total 40.63 49.68
Other expenses
Consultancy charges 532.04 47726
House keeping expenses 88.71 83.85
Power and fuel 38.74 3039
Catering and patient welfare 5249 27.90
Rent (refer note 2.25) 30.63 34.71
Tests and investigations 22.65 18.91
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical /Non medical equipment 21.76 19.56
- Hospital building and others 30.40 24.10
Printing and stationery 9.61 7.42
Audit fee (refer note below) 0.80 0.82
Legal and professional charges 4.18 3.08
Rates and taxes 593 1.76
Travelling and conveyance 28.00 18.84
Advertisement and publicity 17.61 15.22
Communication expenses 3.80 427
Provision for expected credit loss for trade receivable (net of bad debts) 9.86 7.74
Insurance 1.12 1.25
Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 2.35) 7.40 4.02
Bank charges 7.78 744
Director sitting fee 0.20 0.20
Miscellaneous expenses 2.00 0.89
Total 915.71 789.63
Note: Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.82

Statutory audit fee 0.80




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.24 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Commitments

Particulars otne As il
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
D for (net of advances) 348 059
() Contingent linbility
Particul As at Asat
artieutars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:
i) Medical claims (gross, excluding interest/costs) 7.80 5.70

(¢) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India jssued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which
components of their employee's compensation are subject Lo statutory withholding obligations, and matehing employer cantribution obligations, for
Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the refrospective applicability of the judgement. However, from
the date of order, the Group has complied with the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement. The Group will evaluate the same and update its position for
earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Notes (For note (b) and (c)):

i, Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company and its associate to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if any,
in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of j udgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

ii. The Coipany has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent linhilities where applicable in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceeding to have a materially
adverse effect on its financial position.

w
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts arc in million of Indian Rupces except share data or unless otherwisc stated

2.25 Lease

Operating leases in the capacity of lessee

The Company has lease contracts for various items of Land, Building and Medical Equipment used in its operations. Leases of Land, Building and Medical
Equipment generally have Iease terms between 3 - 15 years, Generally, the Campany is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. There are
several lease contracts that include extension ard termmation options, which are further discussed below.

The Company also has certain leases of buildings and machinery with leise terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The
Comipany applies the ‘shori-term lease " and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these Jeases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Land Buildi Medical Equipment Total

As at 1 April 2021 - 369.30 0.27 369,37
Addition 777.38 3.50 - 780.88
Amortization expense charged to P&L - 42.15 0.20 4235
Amortization expense transferred to CWIP 40.87 - - 40.87
As at 31 March 2022 736.51 330.65 0.07 1,067.23
Addition - - - -
Amortization expense charged to P&L - 4245 0.07 4252
Amortization expense transferred to CWIP 81.82 - - 8182
As aBl March 2023 654.69 288.20 - 942.89

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities ranges between 8% to 12.59% with maturiry between 2022-2031(31 March 2022: 8% to 12.59% with maturity
between 2022-2031).

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under borrowings) and the movements during the period:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance as on 1 April 954.28 43074

Addition - 541.87

Accretion of interest charged to P&L 4048 42.58

Accretion of interest transferred to CWIP 4148 21.52
Payments {149.65) (82.43)

As at 31 March 886.59 954.28

Current 78.77 67.69

Non-current 807.82 886.59

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 42.52 4235

Interest expense on lease liabilities 4048 42.58

Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses) 30.63 34.71

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 113.63 119.64

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs, 180.28 in 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs, 117.14).

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these
extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Within one year 154.41 149.65
Between one and five years 646.08 632.80
After more than five years 441.70 609.39
Total 1,242.19 1,391.84
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2.2

6

Related party disclosures
() Parties where control exists or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the current year or previous year

Nature of relationshiy Naiie of related partics Designation
Directors Dr. Bollineni Abhinay Director
Mr. Ramakrishna Reddy Garisa Ind dent Director (resigned on 8 February 2022)
Mr. S. Sunand Director
Mr. K. Ratna Kishore Independent director (w.e f 8 February 2022)
Mr. G. Rajeshwar Rao Independent director

Key management personnel (KMP)

Dr. Sudheer Vinnamala

Director & CEO (w.e f9 August 2022)

Mr Uma Shankar Mantha Company Secretary (resigned on 17 May 2022)
Mr Subodh Singh BK Chief Executive Officer(resigned on 17 May 2022)
Mr Gaurav Dutt Trivedi Company Secretary (w.e f 17 May 2022)
Mr P Vet Chiof Financial Officer

Holding Company Krishna I of Medical Seiences Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
Relative of KMP

Rajyalukshmi Healthcare Private limited

Mrs. S Padma Priva- Spouse of Mr, S. Sunand
Dr, Pratima Varma- Spause of Dr, Sudheer Vinnamala
Mrs_Neeti Singh- Spouse of Mr. Subodh Singh

Enterprises under control or joint control of KMP and
other relative

SSC Projects Private Limited

(b) Transactions with related parties
: For the period ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I.  Professional fee to KMP
Dr. Sudheer Vinnamala 360 240
1. Professional fee relative of KMP
Dr. Pratima Varma 0.17 0.13
11l. Managerial remuneration*
Mr Subodh Singh B K - 4.79
Mr P Venu 0.91 085
Mr Gaurav Dutt Trivedi 0.68
IV. Remuneration to relative of KMP
Mrs. Neeti Singh - 083
V  Salary paid*
Mr Uma Shankar Mantha 0.02 012
VL. Lease Rental paid
Mr.S. Sunand 1582 13.69
Mrs. S Padma Priya 15.82 13.69
M. Purchase of medical consumables and pharmacy
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 6.06 23.69
SSC Projects Private Limited 0.94 098
IV. Sale of pharmacy items
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 0.40 190
V1. Test and Investigations expenses
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 12.59 11.81
VIL. Revenue from healthcare services
Mr. S, Sunand - 0.07
Mr P Venu - 032
Rajyalakshmi Healthcare Private Limited 011 -
VIIL Unsecured loan taken and repaid during the year
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 128 58
IX. Interest on Unsecured loan
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 34
X1. Directors sitting fee
Mr. G. Rajeshwar Rao 0.10 0.10
Mr. Ramakrishna Reddy Garisa - 0.08
010 003

Mr. K Ratna Kishore
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2.26 Related party disclosures (continued)
(c) The balances payable to related parties

Particulars Asat As af
31 March 2023 31 March 2021
L. Trade payables
Mr. S. Sunand 244 1852
Mrs, S. Padma Priya 2.44 1852
Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha - 0.01
SSC Projects Private Limited 0.02 -
Dr. Sudheer Vinnamala 0.27 027
Dr Pratima Varma 0.01 0.01
1I. Trade Receivables
Mr Venu P - 0.32
III. Director sitting fee
- G RajeshwarRao___ .. 0.02 0.03
Mr. K Ratna Kishore 0.02 0.03

*The key managerial personnel are covered by the Company’s gratulty policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with o!her employees of the Company. The proportionate

amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the ial p | has not been included in the afc ioned di as these are determined on an actuarial basis
for the Company as a whole
Terms and conditions:

i i including fi ial assets and fii ial liabilities

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables
balances are setiled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of the balances are secured.
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2.27 Employee benefils

Defined benefit plan

The Company operate post-employment defined benefit plan that provides for gratuity. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as
applicable as at the balance sheet date. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous services, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of
completed services at the Lime of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by trust formed for this purpose and is d by Life T Corporation of India. The Company’s
obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit

method

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in (his respect, the lollowing table sets out (he status of the gratuity plan and the ts recognised in the Company's financial

statements as al the balance sheet date:

As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation 12.87 11.30
Fair value of plan assels 1247 706
Net defined benefit obligation 040 424
Total employee benefit liability G.40 424
Non-current (Refer note 2 13) 040 424
Current - -
B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and ils components.
i} Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligntion
- As at As mt
| Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
|Defined benefit obligalion as at 1 April 11.30 873
Current service cost 2380 240
Interest cost 059 043
Agtuarial (gains) / losses gnised in other prehensive income
- Changes in demographic assumptions - -
- Changes in financial assumptions (047) (0.19)
- Experience adjustments 172 090
Benufit paid (1.19) (0.97)
Ligbilities assumed / (settled) (1.88) -
Defined benefit ohligation us at 31 March 12.87 1130
ii] R iliation of fair value of plan assets
. Asat As at
Pictichiars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Plun assets as at 1 April 7.06 412
Contributions paid into the plan 595 3.69
Return on plan assels 036 019
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income (actuarial gain/loss) 029 003
Benefit paid (1.19) (0.97)
Plan assets as at 31 March 12.47 .06
C i)Exp recognised in the of profit and loss
+ For the year ended For the year ended
Favtitulacs 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Curtent service cost 2380 2.40
Interest on defined benefit obligation / plan assets (net) 023 024
| Net gratuity cost, included in "eniplayee benefits' 3.03 2.64
C i) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuanial gain on defined benefit obli 0.96 0.69
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2.27 Employee benefits (continued)

D Plan assets
Plan nssels comprises of the following

Particulars Asat Asal
31 March 2023 31 Muarch 2022
Fund managed by Insurer 12.47 7.06
E Defined benefit obligation
i} Actuarial assumptions
The following are the pnincipal actuarial assumptions at the reparting date {expressed as weighted averages):
Principal actuarial assumptions As at As
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salary escalation rate 8,00 8.00%%
Discount rate T30% 6.25%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obli
Particulars Asat As at
Sh Mzrch 2023 Si Mareh 1011
1st following year 437 3.68
Year2to 5 797 6.61
Year6to9 248 204
Year 10 and above 234 233

ii) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 10 one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars For the year ended31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (0.41) 045 0.39) 043

|Salary escalation mie (196 movement) 044 (0.41] 0.4 (.39

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption shown.

¥ Defined contribution plan

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount recognived in the stmtement of profit and loss wywands
i) Provident fund 7.93 892
i) Emploves state insurance 280 2.50
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during empl and post-employ benefits ived Presidential assent in September 2020, The Code has

been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The
Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes effective
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2.28

2.30

Earnings per share(EPS)

Particul As at As at
artiewtars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Earnings

Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 470.27 459.18
Shares

Number shares at the beginning of the year 2,45,44,657 2,45,44 657
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,45,44,657 2,45,44,657
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year -Basic and Diluted 2,45,44,657 2,4544 657
Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10 each - Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 19.16 18.71

There are no potentially dilutive equity shares and therefore basic and diluted EPS are the same

Segment information
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/
information provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model, medical and healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making
decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segment’ and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the
Ind AS Financial statements. Presently, the Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India. There are no individual customer contributing
more than 10% of Company's total revenue. All non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets
of the Company are located in India.

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the financial
statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (The MSMED Act) is not expected
to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

As at
31 March 2022

As at

Particul
articulars 31 March 2023

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplics as at end of the year
- Principal

- Interest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium|
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the - -
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

8.88

22.47

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the - -
MSMED Act;
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance - =
as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.31 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'net debt' to

'total equity' ratio.

For this purpose, net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of

equity excluding capital contribution.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total borrowings 1.53 231
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (23.48)
Net debt (21.17)
Total equity 1,081.47
Net debt to equity ratio - Gearing ratio (1.96)%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in

the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31

March 2022.
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2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

As a1 March 2023 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 132.48 132,48
Cash and cash equivalents 18.77 18.77 level 3
Other financial assets 298.34 298.34
Total 449.59 449.59
Financial assets at Fair Value through profit or loss (Refer note below)
Investments in mutual funds 267.14 - level 1
267.14 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 1.53 1.53 level 3
Lease liabilities 886.59 886.59
Trade payables 165.17 165.17
Other financial liabilities 11.56 11,56
Total 1,064.85 1,064.85
As at 31 March 2022 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 91.92 91.92
Cash and cash equivalents 23.48 23.48 level 3
Other financial assets 318.61 318.61
Total 434.01 434.01
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 231 2.31 level 3
Lease liabilities 954,28 954.28
Trade payables 196.57 196.57
Other financial liabilities 10.43 10.43
Total 1,163.59 1,163.59

Note for financial assets and f{inancial liabilities at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other financials assets, other financial liabilities, short term borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term

nature.

The fair values of Long term borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair value

hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk.

Note for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:

The fair value of Investment in mutual funds are based on market value using Net Asset Value, They are classified as level 1 fair value heirarchy

due to the use of quoted prices in an active market.

B. Measurement of fair values
Transfer between Level 1 and 2

There have been no transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 or vice-versa in 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022.
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2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)
C. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liguidity risk

(i) Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all the employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight
role by the internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reporled to the Board of Directors

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, Jeading to financial loss. The
credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from
the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables and contract assets
based on the past and the recent collection trend, The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables and
contract assets amounting to Rs. 181.71 as on 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 133.27). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of
trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

: As at As at
Allowance for credit losses 31 March 2023 31 March 2022'
Opening balance 11.56 15.85
Credit loss added / (reversed) 2.31 (4.29)
Closing balance 13.87 11.56
Trade receivable write off not routed through the above movement 7.55 12.03

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine the expected credit loss on the portfolio of its trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due in the provision matrix. Set out below is
the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company's trade receivables and contract asset using provision matrix:

0-180 days due past  More than 180 (o TR

Particulars Not past due due date days past due date receivables and
contract assets

For the year ended 31 March 2023 108.69 4837 24.65 181.71

For the year ended 31 March 2022 69.07 4521 19.00 133.27

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the period ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2022.
Therefore the customer concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Comapny generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.
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2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk -
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled b
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium
term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a
timely and cost-effective manner.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2023:

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 vear 1-5years More than 5 years Total
Long-term bo_rrf)vnngs (including 1.53 0.85 0.68 = 1.53
current maturities)

Lease liabilities 886.59 154.41 646.08 441.70 1,242.19
Trade payables 165.17 165.17 - - 165.17
Other financial liabilities 11.56 11.56 - - 11.56
Total 1,064.85 331.99 646.76 441.70 1,420.45

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilitieas of 31 March 2022:

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1 -5 years More than S years Total
Long-term bo.rr.owmgs (including 231 0.78 153 B 231
current maturities)

Lease liabilities 954.28 149.65 632.80 609.39 1,391.84
Trade payables 196.57 196.57 - - 196.57
Other financial liabilities 10.43 10.43 - - 10.43
Total 1,163.60 357.44 634.33 609.39 1.601.16

‘The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Company to repay the loan earlier
than indicated in the above table.

(iv) Market risk .

The Company is not exposed to market risk. ) . o A

(v) Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to currency risk.
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2.33 Income-tax

o Amount recogtiived in stutement of proficand b

For the yesr ended  For (he year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax 17164 16432
Taxes for carlier years (0.84) -
Deferred (ax attributable to temporary differences. 1149 {838)
‘Tax expenses for the year 15931 155.94
b Amaunt reeopnlsed o other dompreheniive ineame
For the vear endedd March 2023 For the year endiod 31 March 2022
Before tax e et Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense} Net of tax
bemedil henofid
He-ineswmerinet on defined benefit plans 0.96) 024 072) (069) 020 (.49
€ Reconciliation of ufTective tus rate
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax 629,58 61512
Enscted 1ax rales 2517% 25.17%
Tax expense at enacled rules 15847 15483
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ taxable in calculating taxable income
Non-deductible cxpenses 1.86 101
Taxes for aarlicr years 0.84) -
Othas ©.18) o1l
[ Tutal 159.31 |55.95
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
(i) Defes tax wvsets nnd lishilities are stiributak
N Asat Asal
Particul
sy 31March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doublful receivables 349 291
Provision for employee benefits 434 544
Adjustments relating 1o leases as per Ind AS 116 2531 2161
Total deferred tax uaset 3.4 29.96
Deferred tax labillty
Excess of depreciation on the fixed essels under income lax, 196] over depreciation undar Companies
Act 2008 27.90
Others - 0713
Tolal deferred tax linbility 20.08 28.63
Deferred tax asset/ (liubility) (net) 13.06 133
(1) Movement In temporary differince
Recognised in Recognised in
Balance s st Profii or low Balance as at 31 | Balance as at Balance as at
Particulars OCI during = Profitorloss  OCI during
1 April 2021 - h 2022 12022 31 March 2023
P “'"":!m“ 20222 Otherm Mord 14pd during 202223 202223 are
Provision for doublful reccivables 461 {m - - 291 291 058 - 349
Provision for emplayee benefits paysble 639 (1.15) 0.20 - 544 54 (139 024 434
Others items - assels 17.81 3180 S - 2161 2161 370 - 2531
Expenses of depreciation on the fixed
assets under income Lax, 1961 over (3533) 743 - B 27.90) {27.90) 7.82 - (20.08)
|depreeiation under Companies Act
Others items - liability ©74) 000 - - ©.73) ©073) 073 - -
7.25% KR 0.200 - 133 133 11.49 0.24 13.06
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2.34 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income from hospital services 1,819.62 1,715.27
Income from sale of pharmacy 679.20 573.50
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,498.82 2,288.77
India 2,498.82 2,288.77
Qutside India - -
Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 1,819.62 1,715.27
Goods transferred at a point of time 679.20 573.50
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,498.82 2,288.77
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

Contract price 2,586.16 2,396.43
Less: Discounts and disallowances 87.34 107.66
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,498.82 2,288.77

Contract balances

Particulars

As a8l March 2023 As a1 March 2022

Trade receivables
Contract assets
Contract liabilities

132.48 91.92
35.36 29.79
15.07 12.26

Contract liability: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 12.26 from advance received from patients outstanding as on 31
March 2022. During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 8.43 from advance received from patients outstanding as on
31 March 2021. It expects similarly to recognise revenue in year ended 31 March 2024 from the closing balance of advance from customers as at 31 March 2023.

Contract asset: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the company has transferred Rs. 29.79 of contract assets as at 31 March 2022 to trade receivables on completion
of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has transferred Rs. 25.09 of contract assets as at 31 March 2021 to trade

receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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2.35 Consequent to the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated below. The same is in line with activities specified in Schedule I1I
of the Companies Act, 2013 and activities app: d by the CSR

For the year ended  For the year endes

Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 7.40 4.02
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year F40 402
¢) Amount spent during the year ending on 31March 2023: In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 7.40 - 7.40
d) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2022: In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i) Construction/acquisition of any esset - - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 402 - 4.02
Asat31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022
e) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i) Contribution to Public Trust - -
ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust 7.40 4.02
iii) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongoing project 4 =
- Other than ongoing project % =

7.40 4.02
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2.36  Ratio Anulysis and its ol

O Debt includes Lease Liabilitics

@ Net profit after taxes + Non-Operating expenses
 [nterest and lease payments + Principal Repayments

“ Gross credit sales - sales retum

) Gross credit purchases - purchasc retumns + Other expenses

 Total sales - sales return

@ Current assets - Current Liabilitics

® Tangible Net Worth + Total Debts + Deferred Tax Liability

* Changes in the ratios is due to change in the business operations during the year.

Particulors Numerator Denominator 1 M“"hA:sﬂg 3 !\Iurnh:\;ﬂirz‘ % change*

Curront Ratio Current Asscts Current Liabities L73 064 170 68%
Dibit-Equity’ ratio Total Debts'" Sharcholder’s Equity 057 0.88 -35.06%
Dubf senvice coverage ratio Earmings for debts service'™ Debt serviee™ 456 267 70.43%
Inventory Tumaver Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average lnventory 1120 12.72 -11.94%
Trade Reccivable tumover Ratio Net Credit Sales' Average Trade Reccivables 227 2848 -21.80%
Trade Payvable tumover Ratio Net credit Purchases™ Average Trade Payables 7.65 7.09 7.93%
Net Capital tumover ratio Net Sales® Working capital” 1175 (20.44) -157.50%
Return on Equity Ratio Net profits aftcr taxes Average Sharcholder's equity 3I542% 53.18% -33.39%
Net Prafit eitio Net profit Net Sales' 18.82% 20 06% 6.19%
Rutiurmn on Capital employed FARITES befors mcresim[S3esR GopialEmpoyS= 27.44% 3253% -15.65%
fteturm on Investment Interest (Finance Income) Time Weighted Average Investment 545% 359% 5181%
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.37 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foresecable losses. The

Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

2.38 Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any

Benarmi property.
(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(iii) The Company do not bave any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directlv or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in anv manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii)  The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions

of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(viii)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(ix) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.

2.39 Significant events after the reporting period

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period.
As per our report attached of even date

for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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